
         

 

 

HOBE-ST. LUCIE  
CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

 
MARTIN COUNTY 

 
 

REGULAR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
JULY 24, 2024 

9:30 A.M. 
 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.hobestluciecd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

HOBE-ST. LUCIE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
Conference Room at Becker Tree Farm 

2400 SE Bridge Road 
Hobe Sound, Florida 33455 

REGULAR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
July 24, 2024 

9:30 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication..................................................................................................................................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. June 12, 2024 Regular Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes…………………………………….Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Status Update Regarding RG Reserve………………………………………………………………Page 3 

2. Status Update on Title Search for Easements Related to Elise J and Fernlea Property 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Access to Elise J Property  

2. Discussion Regarding Sandglass Golf Range House Location……………………………………..Page 8 

3. Discussion Regarding C-44 PS Rip Rap 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Engineer’s Report  

2. Attorney’s Report  

3. Manager’s Report 

4. Field Operations Report  

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



 

 
1 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 
OF HOBE-ST. LUCIE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

JUNE 12, 2024 
 
 

Pursuant to the above Notice, the Board of Supervisors of Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy 

District held its Board of Supervisors Meeting on June 12, 2024 at 9:30 A.M. at the Becker Tree 

Farm & Nursery located at 2400 SE Bridge Road, Hobe Sound, Florida 33455. 

Present were Rick Melchiori, Edward Weinberg and Robert Brown, Supervisors; Michael 

McElligott of Special District Services, Inc. as District Manager; Robert Higgins of Higgins 

Engineering, Inc. as District Engineer; and Mary M. Viator, Attorney.  Also in attendance was Mr. 

Ray Spears of The Grassroots Corp., Mr. John Haluska and Mr. Jacques Mouracadeh of Coventry 

Development (via telephone). 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Board of Supervisors Meeting was called to order by President Melchiori. 

ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

The President announced a quorum was present and it was in order to transact any business 

to come before the Board.  

ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE 

 The Oath of Office was administered to Mr. Edward Weinberg who took his seat on the 

Board.  

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 The District Manager announced it was in order to elect Officers. Thereupon, the following 

slate of Officers was presented:  

   Rick Melchiori  President 
    Edward Weinberg  Vice President 
   Robert Brown    Secretary  

Page 2



 

 
2 

   Mary Viator    Assistant Secretary  
   Michael McElligott  Treasurer 
     
 A motion was made by Mr. Melchiori, seconded by Mr. Weinberg and unanimously passed 

approving the election of Officers as presented.   

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 A motion was made by Mr. Weinberg, seconded by Mr. Brown and unanimously passed 

to amend the Agenda as follows:   

a) Add “First Amendment to the Public Improvement Acquisition Agreement for Unit 

1A” to New Business; and  

b) Combine “Status Update regarding RG Reserve Pipe Permit” with “Discussion 

Regarding Access to Elise J. Property” to Old Business. 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 None. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 A motion was made by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Weinberg and unanimously passed 

approving the Minutes of the April 24, 2024 Board of Supervisors Board Meeting. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1.    Update Regarding RG Reserve Pipe Permit Application and Discussion Regarding Access 

to Elise J. Property. 

The District Engineer indicated he had been contracted by the Consultant of RG Reserve,  

Oxbow Engineering, who was putting together a plan for the Engineers review.  The District 

Engineer had indicated the need for RG Reserve to pay for the District’s review and the adverse 

effects resulting from the washout of the structure.  The District Engineer had indicated the 

previous damage to the District Facilities could occur again including seepage into the District’s 

Page 3



 

 
3 

Canal.    

 The District Engineer further explained he had coordinated with Don Barnes of SMG who 

was representing the Elise J. Property which an of the additional parcel impacting the washout. 

 The District Engineer confirmed he had been recently contacted by Oxbox Engineering.  

RG Reserve claimed the blowout/ berm failure occurred approximately 1 mile North of the RG 

Reserve Mitigation Bank (off-site) within the Parcel owned by Elise J. LLC.  

 RG Reserve Mitigation Bank requested a formal Resolution be prepared removing RG 

Reserve Mitigation Bank of liability for this issue and the reimbursement for the berm failure be 

addressed solely with the property owner for which the failure occurred (Elise J. LLC). 

 Following discussion by the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. 

Weinberg and unanimously passed requesting a title search be requested for the respective lands 

to address the issue.   

NEW BUSINESS 

 1. Consider First Amendment to Public Improvement Acquisition Agreement for Unit 

of Development No. 1A 

  The District Manager presented the First Amendment to Public Improvement 

Acquisition Agreement for Unit of Development No. 1A.   He explained the Amendment.    

  A Motion was made by Mr. Brown, and seconded by Mr. Weinberg and 

unanimously passed, approving the First Amendment to Public Improvement Acquisition 

Agreement for Unit of Development No. 1A. 

 Mr. Melchiori and Mr. Weinberg announced a Conflict of Interest.  Form 8B filed with  
 
District Records. 
 
 2. Consider Disbursement Approval #1 Unit 1A 
 

Page 4



 

 
4 

 The District Manager presented the Disbursement Approval #1 for Unit 1A.  
  
 Following discussion by the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr.  
 
Weinberg and unanimously passed approving Disbursement Approval #1 for Unit 1A Series  
 
2024 Project Account in the amount of $31,158,295.54 in accordance with the Districts 
 
Engineers Certifications for the Transfer of Discovery Hobe Sound Investor’s Public  
 
Improvements.    
 
 Mr. Melchiori and Mr. Weinberg announced a Conflict of Interest.  Form 8B filed in  
 
District Records. 
 
 3. Consider Resolution 2024-08 Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget: 
 
 The District Manager presented the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget and explained the  
 
proposed Budget represented the maximum rate which could be lowered.   The District Manager  
 
explained the Budget included Projected Disbursement to Funds from SFWMD Delinquent  
 
Assessments.   
  
 He commented on the individual Units as well as the Balance of the District which has a 
 
substantial balance.   
 
 Comments were received by the Board on the budgets for the respective Units of  
 
Developments, including allocations of the surplus funds from monies received from the  
 
payment of delinquent assessments.    
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Weinberg and unanimously passed  
 
to approve Resolution 2024-08 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE HOBE- 
ST. LUCIE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT APPROVING A BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2024/2025; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

Page 5



 

 
5 

(Copy filed with District Records) 
 
4. Consider Resolution 2024-09 Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Meeting Schedule 
 
 The District Manager presented the Proposed Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Meeting Schedule.  
  
 A motion was made by Mr. Weinberg, seconded by Mr. Brown and unanimously passed  
 
to approve Resolution 2024-09 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Meeting Schedule as  
 
follows: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE HOBE-  
ST. LUCIE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR MEETING 

SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND SETTING  
THE TIME AND LOCATION OF THE SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

(Copy filed with District Records) 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. District Engineer’s Report 

The District Engineer commented on the District’s operations and matters as they appeared 

on the Agenda.   

2. District Attorney’s Report 

The District Attorney reported on matters as they appeared on the Agenda.  She 

further commented on the status of the Bond Financing for the 2024 Bond Series for Unit of 

Development No. 1A 

3. Manager’s Report 

The District Manger reported on matters as they appeared on the Agenda.  

He further commented on reporting details on Supervisor Ethics Training and the Filing of 

the New Financial Disclosure Form 1 on the State Website.   

4. Field Operations Report 

Mr. Spears commented on the Pump Station Update.  

Page 6



 

 
6 

SUPERVISOR COMMENTS 

NONE 

NEXT MEETING 

The Board confirmed the July Board Meeting would be held on July 24, 2024,  

at the Becker Tree Farm Conference Room.   

ADJOURN 

 There being no further business to come before the Board, the Meeting was adjourned.  

 

 
_________________________________ 
President 

 
 

_________________________________ 
Secretary 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



 

 

 
July 15, 2021 

 
Via Certified Mail 
 
Elise J, LLC 
c/o Mr. Mosh Sams 
Registered Agent 
P.O Box 1670 
Boca Raton, FL 33429 
 
R.G. Reserve, Inc. 
f/k/a J R Stuart Land Corporation 
c/o Mr. Robert L. Sader, Esq. 
Registered Agent 
224 Commercial Blvd., Suite 310 
Lauderdale By the Sea, FL 33308 
 
R. G. Reserve Mitigation Bank 
c/o Mr. Toby Overdorf 
Engineering Design and Construction, Inc. 
10250 SW Village Parkway, Suite 201 
Port St. Lucie, FL 34987 
 
 
 Re: Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy District / Washout of Irrigation Canal Berm 
 
Dear Sirs: 
 
 We are the attorneys for Hobe-  
 
 It is our understanding that you are the owners and/or representatives of two (2) 
parcels of vacant land located in Sections 6 and 7 immediately west of and adjacent to the 

properties have previously built up with flood waters due to extensive rains occurring in early 
November 2020, as well as the preceding year, causing the berm to overflow into the District 
irrigation canal on the north boundary. This overflow caused the berm to erode such that water 

CALDWELL PACETTI

EDWARDS SCHOECH & VIATOR LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

 
SYNOVUS BANK BUILDING 

1555 PALM BEACH LAKES BOULEVARD 
SUITE 1200 

WEST PALM BEACH, FLORIDA 33401 

MANLEY P. CALDWELL, JR. 
KENNETH W. EDWARDS 
CHARLES F. SCHOECH 
MARY M. VIATOR 
WILLIAM P. DONEY 
FRANK S. PALEN 
JOHN A. WEIG 
     
   OF COUNSEL 
BETSY S. BURDEN 

________ 

www.caldwellpacetti.com 
________ 

 
TELEPHONE:  (561) 655-0620 
TELECOPIER:  (561) 655-3775 

Page 11



Elise J, LLC  
R.G. Reserve, Inc.
R.G. Reserve Mitigation Bank
Page 2  
 
was flowing freely from these properties into the District. The District was thus required to 
expend funds for necessary repairs for which you have been invoiced and are your obligation 
to pay as the responsible parties. Note that this is the second unlawful occurrence on this 
property within the past two (2) years. 
 
 It is our understanding that discussions have been had regarding installing an 
emergency overflow structure in the southeast corner of R.G. Reserve (J.R. Stuart Land 
Corporation) which should help to prevent this damage from again occurring. The District 
continues to proceed in good faith and requests your cooperation in pursuing this potential 
remedy. 
 
 You are advised to note the provisions of Section 298.66, Florida Statutes, which state: 
 

public canal, drain, ditch, or watercourse or 
damages or destroys any public drainage works constructed in or maintained by any district 
shall be liable to any person injured thereby for the full amount of the injury occasioned to any 
land or crops or other property by reason of such misconduct and shall be liable to the district 
constructing the drainage work for double the cost of removing such obstruction or repairing 
such damage. 
(3) Any person who willfully, or otherwise, obstructs any public canal, drain, ditch, or 
watercourse, impedes or obstructs the flow of water therein, or damages or destroys any public 
drainage works constructed in or maintained by any district commits a felony of the third 
degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083  
 
 Should the District not receive a satisfactory response from you within fifteen (15) 
days of your receipt of this letter, the District has no alternative but to pursue any and all 
necessary legal action. 
 
 Please govern yourselves accordingly. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 

       Mary M. Viator 
 
       Mary M. Viator 
 
MMV/dk 
Cc: Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy District 
 
 

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23


	Hobe-St. Lucie Conservancy District - July 24, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	June 12, 2024 Regular Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
	Status Update Regarding RG Reserve Pipe Permit
	Discussion Regarding Sandglass Golf Range House Location




